
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, January 31, 2017 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 January 24, 2017 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Auditor  

a. Surplus of Personal Property  

Commissioners 

b. Allocation of Superior Court Salaries & Benefits & Costs of Information Technology 

Assessment; Rescinding Resolution 2016-244 

c. 2017 Franklin County Flat Monthly Payments for Benton Franklin Juvenile Center 

Operations & Facilities Budget 

d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000 

Facilities 

e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0305-101, Dept. 000   

Fairgrounds 

f. Payment to Cyrring Hot Productions for Website Hosting 

Information Technologies 

g. Amended Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Using Yammer Networking  

h. Purchase of ArcGIS Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute for GIS Dept  

Parks      
i. Contract w/Richardson’s Garage Doors for Replacement Door @ Horn Rapids Park    

j. Contract w/Northwest Playground Equipment, Inc for Shelter Structure @ Two Rivers Park 

Personnel 

k. Compensation for Chief Deputy Assessor, Auditor, Clerk & Treasurer  

l. Contract w/Pacific Microrem, Inc for Maintenance & Repair of X-Ray & Metal Detectors 

Public Safety 

m.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138   

n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138 

Public Works 

o. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

p. 2017 Road Levy Certification 

q. Agreement w/City of Grandview for Equipment Maintenance     

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

January 31, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

r. Payment to Rowand Machinery for Snow Removal Equipment Rental  

s. Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Crack Seal Project  

t. Contract w/Northwest Marine & Sport for Boat Repair & Maintenance 

Sheriff 

u. Agreement w/Kennewick School District for Education Program   

v. Title Changes and Position Change for Jail Lieutenant, Patrol Captain & Corrections Officer 

w. Compensation for Appointed Non-Bargaining Positions; Rescinding Resolution 2014-702 

Sustainable Development 

x. Deed of Right Regarding Properties Within Candy Mountain Preserve 

Treasurer 

y. Cancelling Taxes Assessed Determined to be Uncollectible  

 

Scheduled Business  

 

Yakima Basin Integrated Plan Briefing ~ A Fyall 

 

Hanford Communities Annual Report ~ A Fyall 

 

Hanford Advisory Board ~ A Fyall  

 

Rural County Capital Fund Disbursement Policy ~ A Fyall 

 

Gang & Crime Prevention Initiative Presentation ~ S Faulconer 

 

Mental Health Housing Program 2163 Funds ~ K Sullivan 

 

WA State Parks & Recreation Commission - Boating Safety Program Application ~ Lt. Caughey  

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business    
 

   Executive Session 

 

   Roads Grievance Position ~ S Hallstrom 

 

   Corrections Grievance Position ~ S Hallstrom 

 

   4th Quarter Litigation Update ~ R Brown 

    

    

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, January 24, 2017, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman James Beaver 

  Commissioner Shon Small 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Absent: Commissioner Jerome Delvin (Vacation) 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain;  District Court Administrator 

Jacki Lahtinen;  Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen; Clark Posey, Assistant Planning 

Manager; Jerrod MacPherson, Assistant Planning Manager; Human Services Manager Kyle 

Sullivan; Shela Berry, Human Services; Deputy Clerk Elaine Osborne; Ryan McClure and Jeff 

Liner, Road Department; IT Manager Teri Holmes; District Court Judge Dan Kathren.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of January 10, 2017 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “mm”.  

Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Assessor 

a. Purchase Authorization of Office Chairs from Husk Office Supplies & Furniture 

Auditor 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000    

Clerk  

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000  

Commissioners  

d. Lobbying Agreement w/Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs     

e. Agreement w/Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs for Project Development Services   

f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000 

District Court  

g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 

  



 - 2 - 

Facilities 

h. Award to Brutzmans Inc for the purchase of Office Furniture for the Tenant Improvement 

Project @ the Justice Center  

i. Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project @ the Justice 

Center 

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110  

k. Notice to Lowest Responsible Bidder for Hazardous Materials Abatement Project for Old 

Engineering Building 

Juvenile 

l. Contract w/SimplexGrinnell for Fire Alarm Inspection & Testing  

m. Contract w/Yoder Inc dba Coffeys Refrigeration for Kitchen Equipment Repair 

n. Contract w/Sierra Electric Inc for Electrical Repair  

o. Contract w/Western States CAT for Engine & Generator Maintenance & Repair  

p. Contract w/NCIC Inmate Communications for Facility Inmate Telephone Services  

q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 

r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 to 172  

s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138  

Office of Public Defense 

t. Agreement w/M Matkowski for Private Investigator Services    

Parks      
u. Payment Authorization to Total Energy Management for HVAC Services @ Horn Rapids 

Park   

v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126 to Dept. 110    

Prosecuting Attorney 

w. Memorandum of Agreement w/Benton County Deputy Sheriff’s Guild 

Public Safety 

x.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138   

Public Works 

y. Amendment No. 2 for Solid Waste Coordinated Prevention Grant w/Dept of Ecology 

z. Construction Plans for Sagebrush Road Safety Project 

aa. Construction Plans for Shuler Road Culvert Replacement     

bb. Acceptance of Work Performed by Solid Structures LLC for Storage Sheds  

cc. Transfer of Funds from Flood Control Fund (0103101) to the Road Fund (0101101) 

dd. Purchase of Tires & Services from Pasco Tire Factory 

ee. Purchase of Public Safety Communications Equipment from Advanced Paging & 

Communications 

ff. Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Purchase of Herbicides  

Sheriff 

gg. 2016 Federal Equitable Sharing Agreement & Certification Report     

hh. Salary Request Statement  

ii. Purchase of Portable Communication Equipment from Motorola Solutions  

jj. Intergovernmental Agreement Modification w/US Marshals Service for Housing of 

Federal Detainees   

Superior Court 

kk. Line Item Transfer, Fund 0000-101, Depts. 123 & 115  

  



 - 3 - 

Sustainable Development 

ll. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000    

mm Letter of Support to EVITA for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 

 

Other Business  

 

Shela Berry and Kyle Sullivan, Human Services presented an income waiver for the Veterans’ 

Fund.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the income waiver as presented for Jeremy 

Albers.  Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

The Board thanked the Road Department for their good work on clearing the County roads of snow 

and ice.   

 

Claim for Damages 

 

CC 2017-02: Received on January 18, 2017 from John Panther 

 

Payroll 

 

Check Date:  1/13/2017 

 

Warrant #: 240280 

Total all funds:  $2,567.71 

 

Check Date:  1/17/2017 

 

Payroll Draw Checks 

Warrant #: 240277-240279 

Direct Deposit #: 120926-121108 

Total all funds:  $112,586.71 

 

Payroll Draw Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes #: 101170116 

Total all funds:  $37,135.23 

 

Payroll Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes #: 101170117 

Total all funds:  $61.20 

 

  



 - 4 - 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date:  1/10/2017 

 

Procurement Cards:  #0117 

Total all funds:  $351,898.98 

 

Check Date 1/13/2017 

 

Transfers #01131701-01131710 

Total all Funds:  $87,998.13 

 

Warrants #151109-151232 

Total all Funds:  $658,884.79 

 

Transfers #01131711 

Total all Funds: $14,889.88 

 

Warrants #151233-151272 

Total all Funds:  $194,257.48 

 

Check Date 1/20/2017 

 

Transfers #01201701-01201705 

Total all Funds: $30,551.10 

 

Warrants #15137-151468 

Total all Funds:  $217,136.77 

 

Transfers #01201706-01201707 

Total all Funds:  $21,789.64 

 

Warrants #151469-151524 

Total all Funds:  $287,678.42 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2017-042: Purchase Authorization of Office Chairs from Husk Office Supplies & Furniture 

2017-043: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000    

2017-044: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000  

2017-045: Agreement w/Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs for Project Development 

Services   

2017-046: Lobbying Agreement w/Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs   

2017-047: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000 



 - 5 - 

2017-048: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 

2017-049: Award to Brutzmans Inc for the purchase of Office Furniture for the Tenant 

Improvement Project @ the Justice Center  

2017-050: Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project @ the 

Justice Center 

2017-051: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110  

2017-052: Notice of Lowest Responsible Bidder for Hazardous Materials Abatement Project 

for Old Engineering Building 

2017-053: Contract w/SimplexGrinnell for Fire Alarm Inspection & Testing  

2017-054: Contract w/Yoder Inc dba Coffey Refrigeration for Kitchen Equipment Repair 

2017-055: Contract w/Sierra Electric Inc for Electrical Repair  

2017-056: Contract w/Western States CAT for Engine & Generator Maintenance & Repair  

2017-057: Contract w/NCIC Inmate Communications for Facility Inmate Telephone Services  

2017-058: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 

2017-059: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 to 172  

2017-060: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138  

2017-061: Agreement w/M Matkowski for Private Investigator Services    

2017-062: Payment Authorization to Total Energy Management for HVAC Services @ Horn 

Rapids Park   

2017-063: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126 to Dept. 110    

2017-064: Memorandum of Agreement w/Benton County Deputy Sheriff’s Guild 

2017-065: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138   

2017-066: Amendment No. 2 for Solid Waste Coordinated Prevention Grant w/Dept of 

Ecology 

2017-067: Construction Plans for Sagebrush Road Safety Project 

2017-068: Construction Plans for Shuler Road Culvert Replacement     

2017-069: Acceptance of Work Performed by Solid Structures LLC for Storage Sheds  

2017-070: Transfer of Funds from Flood Control Fund (0103101) to the Road Fund (0101101) 

2017-071: Purchase of Tires & Services from Pasco Tire Factory 

2017-072: Purchase of Public Safety Communications Equipment from Advanced Paging & 

Communications 

2017-073: Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Purchase of Herbicides  

2017-074: 2016 Federal Equitable Sharing Agreement & Certification Report     

2017-075: Purchase of Portable Communication Equipment from Motorola Solutions  

2017-076: Intergovernmental Agreement Modification w/US Marshals Service for Housing of 

Federal Detainees   

2017-077: Line Item Transfer, Fund 0000-101, Depts. 123 & 115  

2017-078: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000    

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:04 

a.m.  

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



A. Coverdell 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

As outlined in Resolution 07-752, County departments request supply and equipment 

items be declared surplus and be disposed of. 

 

 

SUMMARY  

The Personal Property Manager has determined that the personal property on the attached 

exhibit can be declared surplus and disposed of accordingly.  

 
  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: January 31, 2017 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda x    

Subject: 

Declaration of Surplus 

Property  Pass Resolution  x   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance      1st Discussion     

By: A. Coverdell Pass Motion      2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: B. Chilton/V. Pettey Other      Other      

                    

WEH
Text Box
a. Surplus of Personal Property



A. Coverdell 

RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, various departments have identified supply items and equipment which have become 
obsolete; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager that the listed property be 
declared surplus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus 
antiquated and obsolete property; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and as 
supported by the various departments, the listed property in Attachment A is hereby determined to be 
surplus and will be held for online auction, the next surplus sale, disposed of as waste, or recycled 
depending on final condition assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2017. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member  

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington  

 
Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board    
 

  
  



A. Coverdell 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

18750 Viper Floor Buffer   
1/4/2017 Corrections    Model VN1715 / Serial # VN1715-04559 Scrap / Parts  

05507 Floor Buffer   
1/4/2017 Corrections    Model 88400-026 Junked/Disposed  

03407 Floor Buffer   
1/4/2017 Corrections    Model 88400-026 Junked/Disposed  

 
 
Refrigerator (animal control) ceased functioning/disposed 
Snow blower (juvenile) – traded-in to Farmers Exchange 12/15/16 
 
Battery charger (Sheriff Booking)  WPLN4121BR/disposed non-working 
 

Type Tag Serial Number Make Description 

laptop 17722 6KYRPJ1 Dell Latitude E6500 Duo/2930 

laptop 16409 8Q8HKC1 Dell Latitude D820 T5500/1660 

laptop 16946 1BHTLF1 Dell Latitude D830 Duo/2000 

laptop 16954 8QPZMF1 Dell Latitude D830 Duo/2000 

laptop 16955 2QPZMF1 Dell Latitude D830 Duo/2000 

laptop 14953 DFQX3990ZA Panasonic Toughbook CF-28 

laptop 16504 DFQX3993XA Panasonic Toughbook CF-74 

laptop 16510 DFQX3993XB Panasonic Toughbook CF-30 

monitor 17786 CN-OD307J-74445-954-B2TS Dell 1908FP 19" LCD 

monitor 16052 CN-OJ6642-71618-57S-ACPH Dell 1704FPV 17" LCD 

monitor 18103 CN-O9M62C-74261-083-5CCL Dell P190SB 19" LCD 

monitor 17068 CN-OCC388-71618-7C2-AHEP Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 17701 CN-OD319J-74261-929-3PLL Dell 1908FP 19" LCD 

monitor 18541 CN-O8JCGH-74445-138-BZLL Dell Pro1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18548 CN-O8JCGH-74445-141-AP7L Dell Pro1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18629 CN-O8JCGH-74445-13T-DHBL Dell Pro P1911 19" LCD 

monitor 16490 CN-OCC280-71618-6CL-ACPD Dell 1707FP 17" LCD 

monitor 16465 

CN-OCC280-71618-6CM-

AAYW Dell 1707FP 17" LCD 

monitor 17717 CN-OC553H-74445-928-AAPP Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

net 13765 SSG01300143 HP ProCurve 4000M Switch 

pc 16498 GNFVMC1 Dell OptiPlex 745 DT PentD/1860 

pc 19057 9L2Z5V1 Dell OptiPlex 990MT i5/2400 

pc 19060 9L1Z5V1 Dell OptiPlex 990MT i5/2400 

pc 16942 9L6KJF1 Dell OptiPlex 740 SFF AthlonX2/2800 

pc 18072 HLTTMM1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18539 HDPKHQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18542 J3HLHQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18630 F6QRXQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 



A. Coverdell 

pc 18707 GH2X1R1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18928 1N84KS1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3300 

pc 16860 C861KF1 Dell OptiPlex 740 SFF AthlonX2/2800 

pc 18389 8F46PN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18395 8F67PN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 19308 DRRXWV1 Dell OptiPlex 990 SFF i5/2500 

pc 18411 HDWGPN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 17714 426KPJ1 Dell OptiPlex 760 Duo/3000 

printer 18323 CNCCBC10TL HP LaserJet CP3525dn 

printer 18323A CNCCBC10TL HP LaserJet CP3525dn 

printer 14777 CNCV128061 HP LaserJet 1200 

printer 15420 SJPBFG16117 HP LaserJet 2300dn 

printer 15690 CNB1B01112 HP LaserJet 1160 

printer 15691 CNB1B01126 HP LaserJet 1160 

printer 16348 CNL1F52366 HP LaserJet 1160 

printer 18779 CN19I447KV HP OfficeJet 6500A 

printer 18939 CN1CJ343J1 HP OfficeJet 6500A AIO 

printer 19045 CN24B29188 HP OfficeJet 6600 H711a 

printer 12110  HP DJ960c 

printer 14812 SCNC3051366 HP LaserJet 1200 

printer 17639 JPDF217205 HP LaserJet P4015dn 

printer 17860 CNT1P00231 HP LaserJet P3005X 

printer 17178 JP8LB42664 HP Color LaserJet 4700dn 

printer 17977 VND3G65522 HP LaserJet P1505 

printer 17176 JPRL84P0FK HP LaserJet 9040n 

printer 18938 VNB3R02618 HP LaserJet P3015dn 

printer 18889    
printer 708    
scanner 17791 509752 Fujitsu fi-5110C 

 
Type Tag Description Status 

Computer 16520 HP 4600 Surplus 

Computer 17273 HP 4600 Surplus 

Computer 18350 HP Z210 Surplus 

Computer 18344 HP Z210 Surplus 

Computer 18346 HP Z210 Surplus 

Computer 18348 HP Z210 Surplus 

Computer 17265 HP 7500 Surplus 

Computer 17267 HP 7500 Surplus 

Computer 17268 HP 7500 Surplus 

Computer 17266 HP 7500 Surplus 

Computer 17269 HP 7500 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG710 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG710 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG710 Surplus 



A. Coverdell 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG710 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG930 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG930 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG930 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG930 Dual Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG930 Dual Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG930 Dual Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG930 Dual Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG932 Surplus 

Monitor NA View Sonic VG932 Surplus 

Monitor 17276 ? Surplus 

Monitor 17271 ? Surplus 

 



WEH
Text Box
b. Allocation of Superior Court Salaries & Benefits & Costs of Information Technology Assessment; Rescinding Resolution 2016-244



















WEH
Text Box
c. 2017 Franklin County Flat Monthly Payments for Benton Franklin Juvenile Center Operations & Facilities Budget









Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

FUND NUMBER 0153101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO:  

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
518.810. 9401 IT Services (New and Budgeted) $100,100 518.810. 4805 Service/Maintenance Agreements $100,100

TOTAL $100,100 TOTAL $100,100
Explanation:

Prepared by: Smith Kelty Date:  31-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

LIT for payment to Thomson Reuters (Manatron) for 1/1/2017 - 3/31/2017 Ascend Assmessment Administrative Support and one more additional quarterly
payment.

VIT Impact

VIT Impact

000

0153-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND FUND NUMBER 0305-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER

000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0305-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
594.200 4103 Professional Services $17,000 594.120 6401 Capital Outlay $17,000

TOTAL $17,000 TOTAL $17,000
Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  24-Jan-2017

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

This is for the 2017-2018 Budget. Transfer is needed to for additional dividers for the new high-density storage at the Health Building.

No Department

Capital Projects Fund

000

0305-101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 1-31-17 
Subject: Payment for 

Cyrring Hot 
Prepared by:       J. Donley  
Reviewed by:      P.Schut 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
Benton County entered into a contract with Cyrring Hot Productions for creation and hosting of a standalone 
website for the Benton County Fairgrounds via Resolution 2014-884 which expired December 31, 2016.  An 
extension authorizing payment is needed to continue paying the annual domain name and web hosting fees. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve payment to Cyrring Hot Productions. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
To be paid from Fairgrounds Operating Fund 0124101 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the requested payment 
 

WEH
Text Box
f. Payment to Cyrring Hot Productions for Website Hosting



Originals:  Fairgrounds;  
cc:  Auditor, S.Araiza, F. Bowen, File  J.Donley 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO CYRRING HOT PRODUCTIONS 
FOR WEBSITE HOSTING AND ANNUAL DOMAIN NAME FEES AT THE BENTON 
COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds entered into an agreement with Cyrring Hot 
Productions via resolution 2014-884 to build and host a standalone website per 
recommendation from the Fairgrounds Improvement Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds would like to continue using the Cyrring 
Hot Productions for web hosting services; and 
 
WHEREAS, a new resolution is needed authorizing payment to Cyrring Hot Productions 
for website hosting and annual domain name fees in an amount not to exceed $132 
annually; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds Office Manager recommends authorizing 
payment for website hosting and annual domain name fees to Cyrring Hot Productions 
until December 31, 2020; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, hereby approves the authorization of payment to Cyrring Hot Productions 
for website hosting and annual domain name fees in an amount not to exceed $132 
annually through December 31, 2020; and 
 
 
Dated this _________ day of ________ 2017. 
 
        
     
 __________________________________________ 

         Chairman of the Board 
     
 __________________________________________ 

                                Member 
      
 __________________________________________ 

                    Member 
 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 

Washington 
Attest:  _____________________________     

  Clerk of the Board      
          
 



WEH
Text Box
g. Amended Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Using Yammer Networking















WEH
Text Box
h. Purchase of ArcGIS Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute for GIS Dept











AGENDA ITEM 

 

Meeting Date:  January 31, 2017 

Subject:  Horn Rapids Garage Door 

Installation Public Works Contract 

Prepared By:  Shyanne Faulconer 

Reviewed By: Adam Fyall 

ACTION NEEDED 

 

Execute Contract X 

Pass Resolution X 

Pass Ordinance  

Pass Motion  

None  

DISCUSSION TYPE 

 

Consent Agenda X 

Public Hearing  

1st Discussion  

2nd Discussion  

Other  

 

SUMMARY 
The item for consideration is a public works contract for replacement of a damaged garage door at Horn 

Rapids Park. 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
One of the garage doors located at Horn Rapids Park (115803 N State Route 225, Benton City) is in need 

of complete replacement, with Richardson’s Garage Doors, Inc. providing a reasonable estimate for the 

project. This contractor is familiar with the site, and has worked on other projects at the site relating to 

repairs, maintenance, and replacement of garage doors. 

 

Due to adverse weather conditions, we are giving the contractor a longer time to complete this project than 

we typically would, knowing that ice and snow may delay repairs/replacement. 

 

This contract has been reviewed for form by the Prosecutor and has been signed by the contractor.  The 

work is to be completed by June 30, 2017. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Not to exceed $2,000.00, to be paid from the Park Development Fund. 

 

 

# # # 

WEH
Text Box
i. Contract w/Richardson’s Garage Doors for Replacement Door @ Horn Rapids Park



 

orig: Parks 
cc: Auditor Prepared by: Faulconer 
 
 

 RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE REPLACEMENT OF A GARAGE DOOR AT 
HORN RAPIDS PARK 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Parks Department staff reported a damaged garage door at Horn 
Rapids Park in late November 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, installation of a replacement garage door requires the hiring of a contractor with the 
equipment and expertise on-hand to perform this scale of work; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a price quote for this job was received from only one contractor, with an estimated 
amount reasonable of such services: 
 
     ► Richardson’s Garage Doors, Inc.     $1,543.21 
 
WHEREAS, this contract includes the installation of a replacement garage door at Horn Rapids 
Park, and this contractor is familiar with the site, and has worked on other projects at the site 
relating to repairs, maintenance, and replacement of garage doors.; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners authorizes the Chairman to sign a 
public works contract with Richardson’s Garage Doors, Inc. of Richland, Washington for the 
installation of replacement garage door at Horn Rapids Park.  As written, the total amount of the 
contract shall not exceed $2,000.00, and shall be paid from the Park Development Fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached contract shall expire June 30, 2017. 
 
Dated this  ___________ day of ___________________ , 2017. 
 
 ________________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 ________________________________                
 Member 
 
 
 ________________________________                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

         Clerk of the Board 



 

 

- 1 - 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and 

RICHARDSON’S GARAGE DOORS, INC., a corporation organized under the 

laws of the State of Washington, with its principal offices at 401 

Wellsian Way, Richland, WA 99352 (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). 

 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

This Contract consists of these terms and conditions and the 

following documents: 

 

a. Exhibit A – CONTRACTOR’s Estimate (No. 7307); and 

b. Exhibit B – Washington State Prevailing Wage Rates for 

Public Works Contracts. 

 

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

 

The term of this Contract shall begin immediately upon execution 

by both parties, and shall expire on June 30, 2017. The CONTRACTOR 

shall complete all work by the time(s) specified herein, or if no 

such time is otherwise specified, no later than the expiration 

date. 

 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR agrees to replace an existing garage door in 

a building located at Horn Rapids Park, 115803 N. State Route 

225, Benton City, Washington 99320, in accordance with the 

CONTRACTOR’s estimate in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference. In replacing the garage 

door, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all necessary materials 

and labor to remove and properly dispose of the existing 

garage door and to install a new garage door, including 

performing a motor rehook.  In the event that the requested 

work encompasses work that is legally required to be completed 

by another type of contractor, CONTRACTOR shall inform COUNTY 

of that fact and shall coordinate with COUNTY to complete the 

work in conjunction with the other contractor. In the event 

that the requested work requires, under State or local law, 

the issuance of a building or other permit, CONTRACTOR shall 



 

 

- 2 - 

be responsible for procuring such permit and arranging for 

inspection and certification of the work. CONTRACTOR may bill 

COUNTY for the full cost of the permit and any labor time for 

any of its employees involved in the permitting process, but 

may not charge any additional processing or other fees that 

it does not actually incur. Thereafter, upon completion of 

services, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that a completed work 

order, detailing the work done, the time expended, and the 

parts used, is remitted to the COUNTY’s Contract 

Representative, or his designee, prior to CONTRACTOR leaving 

the work site.  

 

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials. 

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY.  

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the work specified in this 

Contract according to standard industry practice. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall complete its work in a timely manner and 

in accordance with the schedule agreed by the parties. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to time 

during the progress of the work. The CONTRACTOR shall prepare 

and present status reports and other information that may be 

pertinent and necessary, or as may be requested by the COUNTY. 

 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract Representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

 

a. For CONTRACTOR:  

 

Name Tom Richardson, Owner 

Address 401 Wellsian Way 

City, State Zip Code Richland, WA 99352 

Phone (509) 943-2528 

Fax     (509) 943-4023 

Email tom@richardsonsgaragedoors.com  

   

b. For COUNTY:  

 

Name Adam Fyall 

Address 7122 W. Okanogan Place 



 

 

- 3 - 

City, State Zip Code Kennewick, WA 99336 

Phone (509) 736-3053 

Email adam.fyall@co.benton.wa.us 

 

5. COMPENSATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid for performing services and 

providing materials to replace an existing garage door at 

Horn Rapids Park, in accordance with Section 3 of this 

Contract and Exhibit A. No payment shall be made for any work 

performed by the CONTRACTOR, except for work identified and 

set forth in this Contract. 

 

b. The total amount payable by the COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR under 

this Contract may not exceed Two Thousand Dollars and Zero 

Cents ($2,000.00), including W.S.S.T. Any dollar amount above 

the maximum payable amount will only be approved with an 

amendment to this Contract. Prior to any compensation being 

paid, CONTRACTOR shall submit a Statement of Intent to Pay 

Prevailing Wages via https://secureaccess.wa.gov/ and then 

forward a copy of the statement to COUNTY’S Contract 

Representative. At the completion of all work contemplated by 

this Contract, or at the end of the contract term, whichever 

comes first, CONTRACTOR shall submit an Affidavit of Wages 

Paid via https://secureaccess.wa.gov/ and forward a copy to 

COUNTY’S Contract Representative. No final payment will be 

made until the Affidavit is provided. COUNTY requires that 

all Statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and 

Affidavits of Wages Paid be filed electronically with 

https://secureaccess.wa.gov/.  

 

c. The CONTRACTOR may invoice the COUNTY for filing fees paid to 

the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries for 

filing one Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and 

one Affidavit of Wages Paid. 

 

6. INVOICING 

 

The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY for services that 

have been performed as they are performed, but shall not submit 

invoices more than once per calendar month. Such invoices shall 

detail the work done, the personnel involved, and the date of 

service, and shall also reference the work order provided to the 

COUNTY as required in Section 3 of this Contract. At such time as 

the first invoice is submitted, or any time thereto, CONTRACTOR, 

as well as all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors that are 

employed by the CONTRACTOR for the work contemplated by this 



 

 

- 4 - 

Contract, shall submit a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing 

Wages via https://secureaccess.wa.gov and forward a copy to the 

COUNTY’s Contract Representative. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid 

for services rendered under this Contract until a Statement of 

Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages has been executed and submitted as 

required above by all required parties and the services have been 

performed to the COUNTY’s satisfaction. COUNTY shall only be liable 

to pay for invoiced amounts that are detailed and supported as 

described in this Section. The COUNTY shall authorize payment when 

the work billed is accepted by the COUNTY, and will remit payment, 

less any retainage or other legally withheld funds, for the 

accepted work within thirty (30) days after receiving the invoice.  

 

7. AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORK 

 

a. In the event of any errors or omissions by the CONTRACTOR in 

the performance of any work required under this Contract, 

the CONTRACTOR shall make any and all necessary corrections 

without additional compensation. All work submitted by the 

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the CONTRACTOR and checked 

for errors and omissions. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible 

for the accuracy of the work, even if the work is accepted 

by the COUNTY.  

 

b. No amendment or modification shall be made to this Contract, 

unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment signed by 

both parties. Work under a Contract Amendment shall not 

proceed until the Contract Amendment is duly executed by the 

COUNTY. 

 

8. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend 

the COUNTY and its officers, officials, employees, and agents 

from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, 

liabilities, losses, expenses, damages, and judgments of any 

nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' 

fees in defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability, 

or death to persons or damage to property or business, 

arising in connection with the work performed under this 

Contract, or caused or occasioned in whole or in part by 

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its 

subcontractors or their property upon or in the proximity of 

the property of the COUNTY. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S 

obligation hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, 

death, or damage caused by or arising out of the sole 

negligence of the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees 



 

 

- 5 - 

or agents. In the event of the concurrent negligence of the 

CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, employees, or agents, and 

the COUNTY or its employees or agents, this indemnification 

obligation of the CONTRACTOR shall be valid and enforceable 

only to the extent of the negligence of the CONTRACTOR and 

its subcontractors, employees, and agents. 

 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY and its officers, 

officials, employees, and agents by any employee of the 

CONTRACTOR, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 

performing work hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 

this Section 8 shall survive termination and expiration of 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but 

are not limited to, investigating, adjusting, and defending 

all claims alleging loss from action, error, or omission, or 

breach of any common law, statutory, or other delegated duty 

by the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents, or 

subcontractors. The foregoing indemnification obligations of 

the CONTRACTOR are a material inducement to COUNTY to enter 

into this Contract, are reflected in the CONTRACTOR’s 

compensation, and have been mutually negotiated by the 

parties. 

 

9. INSURANCE 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain continuously, the 

following insurance: 

 

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 



 

 

- 6 - 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out 

of or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 

from the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries 

prior to commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, 

CONTRACTOR waives all rights of subrogation against the 

COUNTY for recovery of damages to the extent they are covered 

by workers compensation and employers liability. 

 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage 

for such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from 

any actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR 

or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with 

CONTRACTOR. The minimum commercial general liability 

insurance limits shall be as follows: 

 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY and its elected and appointed 

officials, employees, and agents as an Additional Insured 

and an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and 



 

 

- 7 - 

not contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude 

liability pursuant to the indemnification requirement under 

Section 8. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy 

shall provide cross liability coverage, indicating 

essentially that except with respect to the limits of 

insurance and any rights or duties specifically assigned in 

this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance 

applies as if each named insured were the only named insured, 

and separately to each insured against whom claims are made 

or suit is brought. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 

(Symbol 1), or if the CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, any 

hired (Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the 

amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 

accident for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect 

CONTRACTOR from claims which may arise from the performance 

of this Contract, whether such operations be by the 

CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

the CONTRACTOR.  

 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 

primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 

programs covering the COUNTY and its elected and 

appointed officers, officials, employees, and agents. 

CONTRACTOR’S liability insurance policies must be 

endorsed to show this primary coverage. Any insurance, 

self-insured retention, deductible, or risk retention 

maintained or participated in by the COUNTY shall be 

excess and not contributory to CONTRACTOR’S insurance 

policies. 



 

 

- 8 - 

 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of 

protection afforded to the COUNTY as an additional 

insured.  

 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 

policies shall not affect coverage provided to the 

COUNTY or its officers, officials, employees, or agents.  

 

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom claim is made or suit is 

brought, except with respect to the limits of the 

insurer's liability.  
 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. 

All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all 

of the requirements stated herein.  

 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 

required by this Contract are not intended to be an 

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher 

limits than the minimums required in this Contract, the 

COUNTY shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 

limits maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 

force from the time services commence until services are 

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 

replaced. CONTRACTOR is required to maintain claims made 

professional liability insurance for a minimum of 36 

months after the effective date of termination or 

completion of this Contract. All liability insurance 

required under this Contract shall be written on an 

Occurrence Policy form.  

 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with 

respect to each insurance policy maintained under this 

Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy 

condition does not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a 

pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without an 

endorsement, then CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the 

insurer and obtain such endorsement. This requirement 



 

 

- 9 - 

shall not apply to any policy which includes a condition 

expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the 

insured or which voids coverage should the CONTRACTOR 

enter into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre-loss 

basis.  

 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under 

this Agreement are expressly conditioned upon 

CONTRACTOR’S strict compliance with all insurance 

requirements. Payment to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in 

the event of non-compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of 

CONTRACTOR’S compliance, such payments not otherwise 

subject to withholding or set-off will be released to 

CONTRACTOR. 

 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued 

by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 

State of Washington that have an A. M. Best's rating of at 

least A-VII or better in the most recently published edition 

of Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 

reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 

Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 

Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 

issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 

RCW and Chapter 284-15 WAC. 

 

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 

than Auto Liability and Workers’ Compensation, shall 

specifically include the COUNTY and its elected 

officials, employees, and volunteers as an “Additional 

Insured” by way of endorsement and shall not be reduced 

or canceled without thirty (30) days written prior 

notice to the COUNTY. Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by the COUNTY and its elected and appointed 

officials, employees, and agents shall be excess of the 

CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, must be provided to the COUNTY’s Contract 

Representative referenced in Section 4. 

  

3. All written notices under this Section 9 and notice of 

cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 

referenced in Section 4.  



 

 

- 10 - 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 

and all insurance policies specified in this Contract 

upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 

following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. 

Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

 

10. PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish Benton County with a Performance Bond 

and a Labor and Materials Payment Bond with sufficient sureties 

acceptable to Benton County, in an amount equal to one hundred 

percent (100%) of the contract sum as security for the performance 

by the CONTRACTOR of this Contract and payment of all the persons 

performing labor and supplying materials pursuant to this 

Contract. PROVIDED that CONTRACTOR may elect, in lieu of the bond, 

to allow COUNTY to retain fifty (50%) of the contract amount for 

a period of thirty (30) days after date of final acceptance, or 

until receipt of all necessary releases from the Washington State 

Department of Revenue and the Washington State Department of Labor 

and Industries and settlement of any liens filed under chapter 

60.28 RCW, whichever is later. Proof of the performance bond, or 

written notification of the CONTRACTOR’S desire to elect the 

alternative to the bond described above, must be received by COUNTY 

within ten (10) days following the execution of this Contract.  

 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 

 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section 5 of this Contract, 



 

 

- 11 - 

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to 

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation 

pay; holiday pay; sick leave pay; medical, dental, or other 

insurance benefits; fringe benefits; or any other rights or 

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall 

be, deem to be, act, or purport to act as an employee, agent, 

or representative of the COUNTY. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state, or local laws which are 

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 

so from the COUNTY'S Contract Representative, or designee. 

 

13. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the COUNTY upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 

 

14. CHOICE OF LAW AND JURISDICTION 

 

This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been made 

and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is agreed by 

each party hereto that this Contract shall be governed by the laws 

of the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and 

performance. 

 

15. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves and their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

  



 

 

- 12 - 

16. TERMINATION 

 

The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part whenever 

the COUNTY determines in its sole discretion that such termination 

is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The COUNTY may terminate 

this Contract upon giving ten (10) days written notice by certified 

mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that event, the COUNTY shall pay the 

CONTRACTOR for actual costs incurred by the CONTRACTOR in 

performing the Contract up to the date of such notice. Payment 

shall be made in accordance with Section 6 of this Contract. 

Nothing in this Section shall limit the rights of the COUNTY 

pursuant to this Contract or applicable law. 

 

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND PREVAILING WAGES 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, 

and local laws, rules, and regulations in performing this Contract, 

including, but not limited to, prevailing wage laws. Specifically, 

at a minimum, the prevailing wages set out in Exhibit B, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, shall be 

paid to all employees, agents, subcontractors or sub-

subcontractors who do any work for CONTRACTOR on this project. 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all subcontractors or sub-

subcontractors sign an agreement to pay these same wages, and that 

such a signed agreement is submitted to COUNTY prior to 

subcontractor commencing any work on the project. This schedule is 

duplicated from the Washington State Department of Labor and 

Industries’ website, it is provided for informational purposes 

only, and COUNTY takes no responsibility for any inaccuracies or 

ambiguities contained therein. If CONTRACTOR believes the schedule 

contains any such ambiguities or inaccuracies, then CONTRACTOR is 

responsible for contacting the Washington State Department of 

Labor and Industries directly to resolve them. Perceived 

inaccuracies or ambiguities in the schedule shall not relieve 

CONTRACTOR from its obligation pursuant to this Contract and 

relevant law to pay prevailing wages. 

 

18. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

The CONTRACTOR and its assignees, delegates, and subcontractors 

shall not discriminate against any person in the performance of 

any of its obligations hereunder on the basis of race, color, 

creed, religion, national origin, age, sex, marital status, sexual 

orientation, veteran status, or the presence of any disability. 

  



 

 

- 13 - 

19. DISPUTES 

 

Disputes over the CONTRACTOR’s performance shall be promptly 

addressed in writing by the aggrieved party in order that such 

matters may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. 

Any dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY’S Contract Representative, or designee. All rulings, 

orders, instructions, and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract 

Representative shall be final and conclusive, subject to 

CONTRACTOR'S right to seek judicial relief.  

 

20. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION, AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the services under this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations and 

duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be assigned, 

delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or firm without 

the prior written consent of the COUNTY. 

 

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

their agreement. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 

 

22. NOTICES 

 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in Section 4 above. Notice may 

also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular 

mail. Notice shall be deemed to be effective three days following 

the date of mailing or immediately if personally served. For 

service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning 

of the next working day. 

 

23. SEVERABILITY 

 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term, or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal or invalid, in whole 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 

be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain 

the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 



 

 

- 14 - 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 

to such statutory provision.  

 

24. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR regarding the work performed under this 

Contract may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend any regularly scheduled purge schedule. 

 

25. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, CONTRACTOR agrees to conspicuously mark the 

records as such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims 

or causes of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of 

COUNTY’S release of records covered under the Public Records Act. 

COUNTY agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in 

a timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 

26. SURVIVABILITY 

 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, provisions 



 

 

- 15 - 

for: indemnification; insurance; non-waiver; inspection of books 

and records; choice of law; compliance with laws; litigation hold; 

and the Public Records Act. 

 

27. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

The CONTRACTOR and its employees, subcontractors, and 

subcontractors’ employees shall maintain the confidentiality of 

all information provided by the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY 

in performance of this Contract, except upon the prior written 

consent of the COUNTY or an order entered by a court of competent 

jurisdiction. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY 

written notice of any judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of 

such information.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-   This section left blank intentionally   -  





AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  31 Jan 2017 

Subject:  TRP Shelter Install 

Prepared By:  Shyanne Faulconer 

Reviewed By: Adam Fyall 

ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract X 

Pass Resolution X 

Pass Ordinance  

Pass Motion  

None    

DISCUSSION TYPE 

Consent Agenda X 

Public Hearing  

1st Discussion  

2nd Discussion  

Other    

 

 

SUMMARY 
 

The item for consideration is a public works contract for installation of a playground shelter at Two Rivers Park.  The 

shelter has already been purchased but requires professional assembly and installation. An amendment is needed to 

expand services and extend contract length. The previous contract (Resolution 2016-885) expired before an amendment 

could be made. 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Pursuant to Benton County Resolution No. 2016-885, the parties entered into a Public Works Contract 
effective November 15, 2016, which expires on December 31, 2016 (the “CONTRACT”), whereby 
CONTRACTOR agreed to install playground shelter equipment, a Shade Systems Double Post Umbrella 
(Model #HC142208), at a playground site in Two Rivers Park located at 213316 East Finley Road, 
Kennewick, Washington 99337. 
 
Said Contract expired December 31, 2016 prior to an amendment being made, to expand the original scope of 
work of the Contract to include the purchase and installation of four (4) surface-mounted benches and 
installation of a concrete pad at the Two Rivers Park playground site. 
 
This new contract shall expire June 30, 2017, to account for inclement weather and the expanded scope of 
work. 
 
This Contract is necessary to expand the 2016-885 scope of work, to extend the term of the Contract, and to 
increase the total compensation amount payable to the Contractor to $9,000.00 for performance of additional 
services under the expanded scope of work and for the purchase of additional equipment and materials. 
 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

Not to exceed $9,000.00, to be paid from the Park Development Fund. 

 

 

# # # 

WEH
Text Box
j. Contract w/Northwest Playground Equipment, Inc for Shelter Structure @ Two Rivers Park



orig: Parks 
cc: Auditor Prepared by: Faulconer 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF THE INSTALLATION OF A SHELTER STRUCTURE,
BENCHES, AND A CONCRETE PAD AT TWO RIVERS PARK 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Park Board and Parks Department staff have been remodeling the 
Playground/Tee #1 area at Two Rivers Park over the past couple of years, including installation of the first tee 
for the disc golf course, newly-planted trees, and a complete updating of the Playground in 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, the County has purchased a “double-post umbrella” style shelter for placement in this area as the 
last major piece of this remodeling project along with the additional purchase of four (4) surface-mounted 
benches and a concrete pad; and, 

WHEREAS, installation of the shelter, benches, and concrete requires the hiring of a contractor with the 
equipment and expertise on-hand to perform this scale of work; and, 

WHEREAS, price quotes for this job were requested from five different suitable contractors, with only one 
quote received, and two of the contractors noting that the job was simply too small to make it worth their 
efforts at this time: 

► Northwest Playground Equipment Spokane WA $8,534.41; 
BANLIN Construction Kennewick WA no response;  
Fowler Construction Richland WA no response;  
G2 Construction Kennewick WA no response; 
Ray Poland & Sons Kennewick WA no response; and, 

WHEREAS, this contract includes the installation of an in-ground mounted double-post umbrella shelter 
structure which Benton County has already purchased separately and will have on-hand for the contractor; 
purchase and installation of four (4) surface mounted benches; and the installation of a concrete pad with 
rounded corners at a playground site in Two Rivers Park; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners authorizes the Chairman to sign a public works 
contract with Northwest Playground Equipment, Inc. of Spokane, Washington, for the installation of the new 
playground shelter at Two Rivers Park.  As written, the total amount of the contract shall not exceed 
$9,000.00, and shall be paid from the Park Development Fund. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached contract shall expire June 30, 2017. 

Dated this ___________ day of ___________________ , 2017. 

________________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

________________________________ 
Member 

________________________________ 
Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington. 

Attest................................................ 
   Clerk of the Board 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 1 - 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and 

NORTHWEST PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT, INC., a corporation organized 

under the laws of the State of Washington, with its principal 

offices at 345 N.W. Dogwood, Issaquah, WA 98027 (hereinafter 

"CONTRACTOR"). 

 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

This Contract consists of these terms and conditions and the 

following documents: 

 

a. Exhibit A – CONTRACTOR’s Quote #1212016CEM2; and 

b. Exhibit B – Washington State Prevailing Wage Rates for 

Public Works Contracts. 

 

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

 

The term of this Contract shall begin immediately upon execution 

by both parties, and shall expire on June 30, 2017. The CONTRACTOR 

shall complete all work by the time(s) specified herein, or if no 

such time is otherwise specified, no later than the expiration 

date. 

 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR agrees to install playground shelter 

equipment, a Shade Systems Double Post Umbrella (Model 

#HC142208) previously purchased from CONTRACTOR; provide and 

install four (4) surface-mounted benches; and prepare and 

install a concrete pad with rounded corners, at a playground 

site in Two Rivers Park located at 213316 East Finley Road, 

Kennewick, Washington 99337, in accordance with Exhibit A 

(attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference). 

Installation of the equipment shall include assembly and 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 2 - 

surface mounting. Installation of the playground shelter 

equipment shall include assembly and in-ground mounting. 

Installation of the benches shall include assembly and 

surface mounting. In the event that the requested work 

encompasses work that is legally required to be completed by 

another type of contractor, CONTRACTOR shall inform COUNTY of 

that fact and shall coordinate with COUNTY to complete the 

work in conjunction with the other contractor. In the event 

that the requested work requires, under State or local law, 

the issuance of a building or other permit, CONTRACTOR shall 

be responsible for procuring such permit and arranging for 

inspection and certification of the work. CONTRACTOR may bill 

COUNTY for the full cost of the permit and any labor time for 

any of its employees involved in the permitting process, but 

may not charge any additional processing or other fees that 

it does not actually incur. Thereafter, upon completion of 

services, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that a completed work 

order, detailing the work done, the time expended, and the 

parts used, is remitted to the COUNTY’s Contract 

Representative, or his designee, prior to CONTRACTOR leaving 

the work site.  

 

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials. 

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY.  

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the work specified in this 

Contract according to standard industry practice. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall complete its work in a timely manner and 

in accordance with the schedule agreed by the parties. 

 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract Representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

 

a. For CONTRACTOR:  

 

Carrie Moorby 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 3 - 

P.O. Box 2410 

Issaquah, WA 98027-0109 

425-313-9161 

425-313-9194 

carrie@nwplayground.com  

   

b. For COUNTY:  

 

Adam Fyall 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

509-736-3053 

adam.fyall@co.benton.wa.us  

 

5. COMPENSATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid for providing and installing 

playground shelter equipment, four (4) benches, and a 

concrete pad with rounded corners in accordance with Section 

3 of this Contract and Exhibit A. No payment shall be made 

for any work performed by the CONTRACTOR, except for work 

identified and set forth in this Contract. 

 

b. The total amount payable by the COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR under 

this Contract may not exceed Nine Thousand Dollars and Zero 

Cents ($9,000.00), including W.S.S.T. Any dollar amount above 

the maximum payable amount will only be approved with an 

amendment to this Contract. Prior to any compensation being 

paid, CONTRACTOR shall submit a Statement of Intent to Pay 

Prevailing Wages via https://secureaccess.wa.gov/ and then 

forward a copy of the statement to COUNTY’S Contract 

Representative. At the completion of all work contemplated by 

this Contract, or at the end of the contract term, whichever 

comes first, CONTRACTOR shall submit an Affidavit of Wages 

Paid via https://secureaccess.wa.gov/ and forward a copy to 

COUNTY’S Contract Representative. No final payment will be 

made until the Affidavit is provided. COUNTY requires that 

all Statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and 

Affidavits of Wages Paid be filed electronically with 

https://secureaccess.wa.gov/. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR may invoice the COUNTY for filing fees paid to 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 4 - 

the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries for 

filing one Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and 

one Affidavit of Wages Paid. 

 

6. INVOICING 

 

The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY for services that 

have been performed as they are performed, but shall not submit 

invoices more than once per calendar month. Such invoices shall 

detail the work done, the personnel involved, and the date of 

service, and shall also reference the work order provided to the 

COUNTY as required in Section 3 of this Contract. At such time as 

the first invoice is submitted, or any time thereto, CONTRACTOR, 

as well as all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors that are 

employed by the CONTRACTOR for the work contemplated by this 

Contract, shall submit a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing 

Wages via https://secureaccess.wa.gov and forward a copy to the 

COUNTY’s Contract Representative. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid 

for services rendered under this Contract until a Statement of 

Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages has been executed and submitted as 

required above by all required parties and the services have been 

performed to the COUNTY’s satisfaction. COUNTY shall only be liable 

to pay for invoiced amounts that are detailed and supported as 

described in this Section. The COUNTY shall authorize payment when 

the work billed is accepted by the COUNTY, and will remit payment, 

less any retainage or other legally withheld funds, for the 

accepted work within thirty (30) days after receiving the invoice.  

 

7. AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORK 

 

a. In the event of any errors or omissions by the CONTRACTOR in 

the performance of any work required under this Contract, 

the CONTRACTOR shall make any and all necessary corrections 

without additional compensation. All work submitted by the 

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the CONTRACTOR and checked 

for errors and omissions. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible 

for the accuracy of the work, even if the work is accepted 

by the COUNTY.  

 

b. No amendment or modification shall be made to this Contract, 

unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment signed by 

both parties. Work under a Contract Amendment shall not 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 5 - 

proceed until the Contract Amendment is duly executed by the 

COUNTY. 

 

8. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend 

the COUNTY and its officers, officials, employees, and agents 

from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, 

liabilities, losses, expenses, damages, and judgments of any 

nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' 

fees in defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability, 

or death to persons or damage to property or business, 

arising in connection with the work performed under this 

Contract, or caused or occasioned in whole or in part by 

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its 

subcontractors or their property upon or in the proximity of 

the property of the COUNTY. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S 

obligation hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, 

death, or damage caused by or arising out of the sole 

negligence of the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees 

or agents. In the event of the concurrent negligence of the 

CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, employees, or agents, and 

the COUNTY or its employees or agents, this indemnification 

obligation of the CONTRACTOR shall be valid and enforceable 

only to the extent of the negligence of the CONTRACTOR and 

its subcontractors, employees, and agents. 

 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY and its officers, 

officials, employees, and agents by any employee of the 

CONTRACTOR, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 6 - 

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 

performing work hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 

this Section 8 shall survive termination and expiration of 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but 

are not limited to, investigating, adjusting, and defending 

all claims alleging loss from action, error, or omission, or 

breach of any common law, statutory, or other delegated duty 

by the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents, or 

subcontractors. The foregoing indemnification obligations of 

the CONTRACTOR are a material inducement to COUNTY to enter 

into this Contract, are reflected in the CONTRACTOR’s 

compensation, and have been mutually negotiated by the 

parties. 

 

9. INSURANCE 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain continuously, the 

following insurance: 

 

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out 

of or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 

from the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries 

prior to commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, 

CONTRACTOR waives all rights of subrogation against the 

COUNTY for recovery of damages to the extent they are covered 

by workers compensation and employers liability. 

 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 7 - 

for such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from 

any actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR 

or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with 

CONTRACTOR. The minimum commercial general liability 

insurance limits shall be as follows: 

 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY and its elected and appointed 

officials, employees, and agents as an Additional Insured 

and an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and 

not contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude 

liability pursuant to the indemnification requirement under 

Section 8. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy 

shall provide cross liability coverage, indicating 

essentially that except with respect to the limits of 

insurance and any rights or duties specifically assigned in 

this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 8 - 

applies as if each named insured were the only named insured, 

and separately to each insured against whom claims are made 

or suit is brought. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 

(Symbol 1), or if the CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, any 

hired (Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the 

amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 

accident for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect 

CONTRACTOR from claims which may arise from the performance 

of this Contract, whether such operations be by the 

CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

the CONTRACTOR.  

 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 

primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 

programs covering the COUNTY and its elected and 

appointed officers, officials, employees, and agents. 

CONTRACTOR’S liability insurance policies must be 

endorsed to show this primary coverage. Any insurance, 

self-insured retention, deductible, or risk retention 

maintained or participated in by the COUNTY shall be 

excess and not contributory to CONTRACTOR’S insurance 

policies. 

 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of 

protection afforded to the COUNTY as an additional 

insured.  

 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 9 - 

policies shall not affect coverage provided to the 

COUNTY or its officers, officials, employees, or agents.  

 

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom claim is made or suit is 

brought, except with respect to the limits of the 

insurer's liability.  
 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. 

All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all 

of the requirements stated herein.  

 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 

required by this Contract are not intended to be an 

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher 

limits than the minimums required in this Contract, the 

COUNTY shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 

limits maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 

force from the time services commence until services are 

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 

replaced. CONTRACTOR is required to maintain claims made 

professional liability insurance for a minimum of 36 

months after the effective date of termination or 

completion of this Contract. All liability insurance 

required under this Contract shall be written on an 

Occurrence Policy form.  

 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with 

respect to each insurance policy maintained under this 

Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy 

condition does not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a 

pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without an 

endorsement, then CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the 

insurer and obtain such endorsement. This requirement 

shall not apply to any policy which includes a condition 

expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 10 - 

insured or which voids coverage should the CONTRACTOR 

enter into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre-loss 

basis.  

 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under 

this Agreement are expressly conditioned upon 

CONTRACTOR’S strict compliance with all insurance 

requirements. Payment to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in 

the event of non-compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of 

CONTRACTOR’S compliance, such payments not otherwise 

subject to withholding or set-off will be released to 

CONTRACTOR. 

 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued 

by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 

State of Washington that have an A. M. Best's rating of at 

least A-VII or better in the most recently published edition 

of Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 

reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 

Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 

Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 

issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 

RCW and Chapter 284-15 WAC. 

 

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 

than Auto Liability and Workers’ Compensation, shall 

specifically include the COUNTY and its elected 

officials, employees, and volunteers as an “Additional 

Insured” by way of endorsement and shall not be reduced 

or canceled without thirty (30) days written prior 

notice to the COUNTY. Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by the COUNTY and its elected and appointed 

officials, employees, and agents shall be excess of the 

CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the COUNTY’s Contract 

Representative referenced in Section 4. 

  

3. All written notices under this Section 9 and notice of 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 11 - 

cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 

referenced in Section 4.  

 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 

and all insurance policies specified in this Contract 

upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 

following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. 

Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

 

10. PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish Benton County with a Performance Bond 

and a Labor and Materials Payment Bond with sufficient sureties 

acceptable to Benton County, in an amount equal to one hundred 

percent (100%) of the contract sum as security for the performance 

by the CONTRACTOR of this Contract and payment of all the persons 

performing labor and supplying materials pursuant to this 

Contract. PROVIDED that CONTRACTOR may elect, in lieu of the bond, 

to allow COUNTY to retain fifty (50%) of the contract amount for 

a period of thirty (30) days after date of final acceptance, or 

until receipt of all necessary releases from the Washington State 

Department of Revenue and the Washington State Department of Labor 

and Industries and settlement of any liens filed under chapter 

60.28 RCW, whichever is later. Proof of the performance bond, or 

written notification of the CONTRACTOR’S desire to elect the 

alternative to the bond described above, must be received by COUNTY 

within ten (10) days following the execution of this Contract.  

 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 

 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 12 - 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section 5 of this Contract, 

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to 

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation 

pay; holiday pay; sick leave pay; medical, dental, or other 

insurance benefits; fringe benefits; or any other rights or 

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall 

be, deem to be, act, or purport to act as an employee, agent, 

or representative of the COUNTY. 

 

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state, or local laws which are 

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 

so from the COUNTY'S Contract Representative, or designee. 

 

13. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the COUNTY upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 

 

14. CHOICE OF LAW AND JURISDICTION 

 

This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been made 

and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is agreed by 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 13 - 

each party hereto that this Contract shall be governed by the laws 

of the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and 

performance. 

 

15. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves and their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

 

16. TERMINATION 

 

The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part whenever 

the COUNTY determines in its sole discretion that such termination 

is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The COUNTY may terminate 

this Contract upon giving ten (10) days written notice by certified 

mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that event, the COUNTY shall pay the 

CONTRACTOR for actual costs incurred by the CONTRACTOR in 

performing the Contract up to the date of such notice. Payment 

shall be made in accordance with Section 6 of this Contract. 

Nothing in this Section shall limit the rights of the COUNTY 

pursuant to this Contract or applicable law. 

 

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND PREVAILING WAGES 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, 

and local laws, rules, and regulations in performing this Contract, 

including, but not limited to, prevailing wage laws. Specifically, 

at a minimum, the prevailing wages set out in Exhibit B, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, shall be 

paid to all employees, agents, subcontractors or sub-

subcontractors who do any work for CONTRACTOR on this project. 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all subcontractors or sub-

subcontractors sign an agreement to pay these same wages, and that 

such a signed agreement is submitted to COUNTY prior to 

subcontractor commencing any work on the project. This schedule is 

duplicated from the Washington State Department of Labor and 

Industries’ website, it is provided for informational purposes 

only, and COUNTY takes no responsibility for any inaccuracies or 

ambiguities contained therein. If CONTRACTOR believes the schedule 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 14 - 

contains any such ambiguities or inaccuracies, then CONTRACTOR is 

responsible for contacting the Washington State Department of 

Labor and Industries directly to resolve them. Perceived 

inaccuracies or ambiguities in the schedule shall not relieve 

CONTRACTOR from its obligation pursuant to this Contract and 

relevant law to pay prevailing wages. 

 

18. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

The CONTRACTOR and its assignees, delegates, and subcontractors 

shall not discriminate against any person in the performance of 

any of its obligations hereunder on the basis of race, color, 

creed, religion, national origin, age, sex, marital status, sexual 

orientation, honorably discharged veteran or military status, 

disability, or any other protected status. 

 

19. DISPUTES 

 

Disputes over the CONTRACTOR’s performance shall be promptly 

addressed in writing by the aggrieved party in order that such 

matters may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. 

Any dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY’S Contract Representative, or designee. All rulings, 

orders, instructions, and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract 

Representative shall be final and conclusive, subject to 

CONTRACTOR'S right to seek judicial relief.  

 

20. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the services under this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations and 

duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be assigned, 

delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or firm without 

the prior written consent of the COUNTY. 

 

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

their agreement. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 15 - 

 

22. NOTICES 

 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in Section 4 above. Notice may 

also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular 

mail. Notice shall be deemed to be effective three days following 

the date of mailing or immediately if personally served. For 

service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning 

of the next working day. 

 

23. SEVERABILITY 

 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term, or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal or invalid, in whole 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 

be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain 

the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 

to such statutory provision.  

 

24. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR regarding the work performed under this 

Contract may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend any regularly scheduled purge schedule. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 16 - 

25. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, CONTRACTOR agrees to conspicuously mark the 

records as such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims 

or causes of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of 

COUNTY’S release of records covered under the Public Records Act. 

COUNTY agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in 

a timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 

26. SURVIVABILITY 

 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, provisions 

for: indemnification; insurance; non-waiver; inspection of books 

and records; choice of law; compliance with laws; litigation hold; 

and the Public Records Act. 

 

27. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

The CONTRACTOR and its employees, subcontractors, and their 

employees shall maintain the confidentiality of all information 

provided by the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of 

this Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY 

or an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 

CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 

judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information.  

  





 cc: Personnel, Assessor, Auditor, Clerk, Treasurer                                         Prepared by: L. Wingfield 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 01/31/2017     
Subject:              Salary Structure for the  

Chief Deputy 
Assessor, Chief 
Deputy Auditor, Chief 
Deputy Clerk, and 
Chief Deputy Treasurer 

Prepared by:       L. Wingfield 
 

 
TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 
Execute Contract 
Pass Resolution     X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion 
Other   

 
 
Consent Agenda    X 
Public Hearing             
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion             
Other              

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Personnel Manager worked with County Administration to complete a salary survey of the Chief 
Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Auditor, Chief Deputy Clerk, and Chief Deputy Treasurer positions.  
Through the salary survey and reviewing other Benton County positions for eternal equity, it was 
discovered that the salary structure for these positions should be addressed.  The Personnel Manager 
and Deputy County Administrator met and discussed the salary structure with the Assessor, Auditor, and 
Clerk, while leaving a voice mail and email for Duane Davidson and later talking to the interim Treasurer 
Kirsten Yniguez. 
 
The Chief Deputy Coroner position was found to be comparable to other Washington counties during the 
salary study. 
 
The Sheriff appointed position salaries are established in resolution 2014-702 while the Chief Deputy 
positions in the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office are established in resolution 08-781. 
 
It is recommended that the Assessor, Auditor, Clerk, and Treasurer be authorized to place their Chief 
Deputy position at up to 85% of their salary at their discretion at any time effective February 1, 2017. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
See above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend approving the authorizing, calculating, and, re-establishing the compensation for the Chief 
Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Auditor, Chief Deputy Clerk, and Chief Deputy Treasurer. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The Chief Deputy Assessor’s budgeted salary may need to be increased up to $32,300 plus benefits. 
 
The Chief Deputy Auditor’s budgeted salary may need to be increased up to $56,880 plus benefits. 
 
The Chief Deputy Clerk’s budgeted salary may need to be increased up to $35,350 plus benefits. 
 
The Chief Deputy Treasurer’s budgeted salary may need to be increased up to $13,250 plus benefits. 
 
No supplement required. 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
k. Compensation for Chief Deputy Assessor, Auditor, Clerk & Treasurer



 cc: Personnel, Assessor, Auditor, Clerk, Treasurer                                         Prepared by: L. Wingfield 

 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING, CALCULATING, AND RE-ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION 
FOR THE CHIEF DEPUTY ASSESSOR, CHIEF DEPUTY AUDITOR, CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK, AND 
CHIEF DEPUTY TREASURER. 
 
WHEREAS, it has come to the attention of the Benton County Personnel Department that certain Elected 
Official appointed positions salaries need re-evaluating; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County Resolution 08-781 establishes the salary for the Prosecuting Attorney Chief 
Deputy positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County Resolution 2014-702 establishes the salary for appointed positions in the 
Sheriff’s Office; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chief Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Auditor, Chief Deputy Clerk, and Chief Deputy 
Treasurer positions are vital to the Elected Official and the County as a whole; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Manager reviewed current Benton County job classification’s placement on 
the Benton County Non-Bargaining salary schedule as well as completed a salary survey among other 
counties in Washington; and 
 
WHEREAS, the salary survey concluded the Coroner Chief Deputy salary was comparable to other 
Coroner Chief Deputy positions throughout Washington counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Manager recommends the Chief Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Auditor, 
Chief Deputy Clerk, and Chief Deputy Treasurer annual salary be up to 85% of their Elected Official at the 
discretion of that Elected Official; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners, hereby approves the recommended 
salary structure for the Chief Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Auditor, Chief Deputy Clerk, and Chief 
Deputy Treasurer; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Chief Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Auditor, Chief Deputy Clerk, and 
Chief Deputy Treasurer annual salary is up to 85% of the Elected Official’s annual salary at the discretion 
of the Elected Official; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this salary structure is effective February 1, 2017. 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 2017. 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 



 Orig: Personnel                                                                                                                                                       D. Meyer 
 cc: Personnel     

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 1/31/2017 
Subject: Pacific 

MicroRem 
Prepared by:           D. Meyer 
Reviewed by: L. Wingfield 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X__ 
Pass Resolution  __X___ 
Pass Ordinance _____ 
Pass Motion _____ 
Other __ __ 

 
 
Consent Agenda    __X__ 
Public Hearing       _____ 
1st Discussion       _____ 
2nd Discussion      _____ 
Other                      _____ 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
As Benton County has multiple x-ray and metal detector machines this contract is meant to help 
provide regular maintenance and repair. Pacific Microrem, Inc., will be scheduled to perform 
regular maintenance and other repairs as requested by Benton County.  
 
Point of contact for Benton County will be the Security Supervisor.  
 
 
SUMMARY:  See above. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the resolution and execute the Personal Services Contract to 
begin upon execution with a termination date of December 31, 2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The maintenance and repair of x-ray and metal detectors will not exceed 
$10,000.00 for the duration of the contract.  
 
MOTION:   I move that we approve the resolution authorizing the Chairman of the Board to sign 
the Resolution and the Personal Services Contract. 

WEH
Text Box
l. Contract w/Pacific Microrem, Inc for Maintenance & Repair of X-Ray & Metal Detectors



 Orig: Personnel                                                                                                                                                       D. Meyer 
 cc: Personnel     

 

RESOLUTION 
 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING PACIFIC MICROREM, INC. A PERSONAL SERVICE 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICE TO X-RAY AND METAL DETECTOR MACHINES.    
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677, Section 4.0 Services “the County need not advertise or 
follow a formal competitive bidding procedure for service contracts, but rather the County may 
instead evaluate and utilize the procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances in 
order to obtain services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County had a contract with Pacific MicroRem, Inc. for service to x-ray and 
metal detector machines per Resolution 2015-402; and 
 
WHEREAS, said contract expired on December 31, 2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, Pacific MicroRem Inc. performed the annual radiation leakage surveys of 
X-ray imaging systems, which is required by the State of Washington, after the contract 
Expired but before a new contract was put in place; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Safety and Training Coordinator recommends entering in to a new 
Contract with Pacific MicroRem, Inc. upon execution of both parties until December 31, 2018; 
NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Benton County Board of Commissioners hereby concurs with the 
recommendation and signs the attached agreement between Benton County and Pacific 
MicroRem, inc., which will begin upon execution with a termination date of December 31, 2018, 
and not to exceed the amount of $10,000.00.  
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of __________________, 2017. 
 
 

 ___________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 

 
 

 ___________________________ 
 Member 

 
 

 __________________________ 
 Member 

 
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
 
Attest....................................................... 
 



































WEH
Text Box
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138







Dated this day of , 

Attest:

Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

PUBLIC SAFETLY TAX (3/10 OF 1%) FUND NUMBER 0148101, DEPARTMENT

NUMBER 138

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
512.232 9108 Administrative Services - OPD $52,800 512.232 4101 Legal Services $52,800

TOTAL $52,800 TOTAL $52,800
Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  20-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

2017-2018 Budget: Line item transfer needed to move budget allocation for OPD costs to the appropriate line item in accordance with the BARS manual.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Drug Court 138

Public Safetly Tax (3/10 of 1%) 0148101



WEH
Text Box
o. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







WEH
Text Box
p. 2017 Road Levy Certification







WEH
Text Box
q. Agreement w/City of Grandview for Equipment Maintenance















WEH
Text Box
r. Payment to Rowand Machinery for Snow Removal Equipment Rental













WEH
Text Box
s. Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Crack Seal Project

































WEH
Text Box
t. Contract w/Northwest Marine & Sport for Boat Repair & Maintenance

































WEH
Text Box
u. Agreement w/Kennewick School District for Education Program



























WEH
Text Box
v. Title Changes and Position Change for Jail Lieutenant, Patrol Captain & Corrections Officer





WEH
Text Box
w. Compensation for Appointed Non-Bargaining Positions; Rescinding Resolution 2014-702





WEH
Text Box
x. Deed of Right Regarding Properties Within Candy Mountain Preserve





















WEH
Text Box
y. Cancelling Taxes Assessed Determined to be Uncollectible









AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date:  31 Jan 2017 
Subject: Yakima Basin 
Integrated Plan 
Memo Date:  24 Jan 2017 
Prepared By:  AJF 
Reviewed By:   

ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution  
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion  
None   X 

DISCUSSION TYPE 
Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion X 
2nd Discussion  
Other    

 
 
SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
 
Tom Tebb (Department of Ecology), Wendy Christensen (Bureau of Reclamation), Jason McShane (Kennewick 
Irrigation District), and Ben Floyd (Anchor QEA – consultant) will give an update on the Yakima Basin 
Integrated Plan, both overall and with emphasis on the Lower River Subcommittee’s work (McShane). 
 
No action requested. 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 

# # # 

WEH
Text Box
Yakima Basin Integrated Plan Briefing ~ A Fyall



WEH
Text Box
Rural County Capital Fund Disbursement Policy ~ A Fyall













































Benton County Gang & 
Crime Prevention Initiative 

2016 Year-End Report

WEH
Text Box
Gang & Crime Prevention Initiative Presentation ~ S Faulconer



Human Trafficking Survivor Services
(Mirror Ministries)

“Since its inception, Mirror Ministries has been a vibrant and robust advocate for the prevention and
intervention of human trafficking.”

 2016 Year End Report:

• 38 victims and survivors identified and served by a Mirror Ministries advocate – approx. half of these 
were affiliated or victimized by Benton County Gangs

• Human Trafficking Awareness/Education/Training: 9 schools, 40 businesses, 22 agencies

• Presentations to a dozen local organizations (i.e. Rotaries, Kiwanis, etc.)

• Hosted awareness training to the community at booths in various events throughout the community

• Worked closely with various local agencies to identify human trafficking victims

• Victim statements were given to police and charges are being pressed in multiple cases – 1 federal trial 
was completed and the trafficker was sentenced

• 3 victims have begun college, youth have been connected with mentors, healthy babies were born, 
and young parents were connected with parenting classes and resources

 Upcoming Budget:

• 2017: $33,000 (75% of requested budget)

• 2018: $33,000 (75% of requested budget)



Kiona-Benton Crime Prevention Program 
(Kiona-Benton City School District)

“The Kiona-Benton Crime Prevention Program (KBCPP) seeks to reduce and eventually eliminate 
gang and other criminal activity for young people age 14-21 in the Benton City area of Benton 
County.”

 2016 Year End Report:

• September 2016: Student Support Specialist hired (located at Kiona-Benton City High School)

• October 2016: Established “Heather’s Pantry” – a homeless student resource and supply system 
that includes food, clothing, and school supplies for students who are homeless or in need 
(established through local donations)

• November 16, 2016: Kiona-Benton City High School in partnership with Strong Families (parenting 
class program) provided an introduction and dinner to over 50 parents. A 7-week, 13-session 
program will begin Spring 2017

• A formal contract has been entered with Educational Service District 123 to bring the Open Doors 
program to the high school, allowing youth ages 16-21 who have dropped out or are at risk of 
dropping out to work toward a GED

 Upcoming Budget:

• 2017: $44,127.20

• 2018: $33,682.31 (75% of requested budget)



Prosser Teen Program Investment
(Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties)

Prosser Teen Program Investment would “support the expansion of the Teen Program at the 
Prosser Park Branch…providing resources for training opportunities for staff, program curriculum, 
supplies, late-night events, as well as unique field trips exclusively for Club teens.”

 2016 Year End Report:

• August 2016: 38 members by 8/1, 41 members by 8/31 (average daily attendance of 22 members)

• Year-end enrollment: 66 members grade 6-12 (average daily attendance of 22 members Sept-Dec)

• New kitchen appliances and furniture purchased – teens prepare healthy, fresh snacks daily

• Members participate in cooking classes and prepare snacks for younger members and staff

• Flag Football Club held after school – community members participated with club members

• Club hosted Monday Night Football events and after-school events for community and club members

 Upcoming Budget:

• 2017: $90,000



Overnight Emergency Youth Shelter 
(Safe Harbor/My Friends Place)

“The goal of My Friends Place Overnight Emergency Youth Shelter is to help young people avoid or 
leave the streets by re-uniting families, supplying survival necessities, finding safe homes, teaching 
self-sufficiency, and offering hope and support.”

 2016 Year End Report:

• 104 hours of tutoring, 23 overnight youth, 42 drop-ins, 32 pairs of shoes, 60 bus passes, 42 hygiene kits, 88 
outfits, and 5020 hot meals served.

• A total of 15 males and 8 females have been housed in the Youth Shelter since August 2016, of which: 
92% American Citizens and 8% immigrants

• Two youths identified themselves as gang members, six were believed to be gang affiliated

• Five youths were brought by Juvenile Justice staff, one sex-trafficked girl

• 19 youths enrolled in school, five placed in GED program, one has graduated from GED program and 
another has entered the Job Corps

• 54% of youth were returned home, 35% were able to move into a rental, and 11% found jobs

 Upcoming Budget:

• 2017: $51,000

• 2018: $52,020



Nurse Family Partnership (NFP) Program
(Benton-Franklin Health District)

“Nurse Family Partnership is a maternal and early childhood health program that fosters long-term 
success for first-time moms, their babies and society.”

 2016 Year End Report:

• June 2016: Signed agreement with Benton County

• Began extensive advertising and recruitment for Nurse Home Visitors and Data Entry Clerk positions

• Hiring, training, orientation for Data Entry Clerk and one Nurse Home Visitor

• Nurse Home Visitor began enrolling clients November 24, 2016

• Currently pending offer for the second Nurse Home Visitor position

• 28 referrals in November and December 2016 – 7 families enrolled, 15 home visits completed

• Client mean age is 19 (range from 15-26 years old)

• First baby is due at the end of February

 Upcoming Budget:

• 2017: $309,570.00 

• 2018: $315,761.40



New 2017-2018 Programs

Building Resilience Through Family Support (Partners for Early Learning)

 Summary: 

Partners for Early Learning will provide home visitor support to high-risk families with young children (ages birth-5) in high-poverty areas 
within Richland School District. It is designed to build resilience within the family, mitigate toxic stress, promote school readiness, and 
connect families to much-needed resources; thus decreasing gang involvement and future crime and incarceration.

 Upcoming Budget:

• 2017: $44,860.00

• 2018: $33,412.50 (75% of requested budget)

Step-Up Program (Chaplaincy Health Care)

 Summary: 

Step-Up is a nationally recognized adolescent-family violence intervention program originally developed and implemented in King County, 
Washington. Step-Up is designed to address youth violence and controlling behavior toward family members and to be an instrument for 
crime and gang prevention. It is a skills-based and restorative practice group intervention for youth and their parents.

 Upcoming Budget:

• 2017: $15,000.00

• 2018:  $15,000.00



WEH
Text Box
Mental Health Housing Program 2163 Funds ~ K Sullivan









AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: January 31, 2017     
Subject: Boat Safety Grant 

Application 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __  _ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           __   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Benton County Sheriff’s Office is requesting aut horization to submit the application s of the Request for Federal 
Financial Assistance Grant and Boa ting Safety Program Approval and the Washing ton State Parks & Recr eation 
Commission 2017 Marine Patrol Federal Financial Assistance Grant Program for consideration of grant funding in 
the amount of $15,414.19 to offse t the cost o f marine law enforcement hours for patrol, vessel in spections, 
education, training, and equipment.    

The grant amount allotted for Benton County is $15,414.19, with a 50% match requirement of the 2016 allocated 
Benton County Vessel Registration Fees, which the State has collected during the State FY 2015 (July 2014 - July 
2015); which is over $25,000.  

RECOMMENDATION   

The Benton County Sheriff’s Office recommends applying for said grant funding to help offset the expenditures for 
the Boat Safety Program.  

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Ryan Lukson 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Federal grant funding coming into the County, with a 50% match requirement. The projected expenditures for two 
(2) 2017 Benton County Marine Coordinator Position are $94,041, which exceeds the 50% match requirement. This 
grant and projected expenditures were appr oved during the 2017/1 8 budget p rocess; therefore, no b udget 
adjustment consideration is needed.  

MOTION 

Board hereby authorizes the Benton County Sheriff to sign and submit the applications of the Request for Federal 
Financial Assistance Grant and Boating Safety Program Approval, and the Washington State Parks & Recreation 
Commission 2017 Marine Patrol Federal Financial Assistance Grant Program for consideration of grant funding in 
the amount of $15,414.19, to offset the cost of marine law enforcement hours for patrol, vessel inspections, 
education, training, and equipment.    

WEH
Text Box
WA State Parks & Recreation Commission - Boating Safety Program Application ~ Lt. Caughey



Orig:  Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, WA St. Parks & Rec. Commission 

Prepared by: L. Small 

RESOLUTION
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR FUNDING FROM WASHINGTON
STATE PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION FOR 2017 MARINE PATROL FEDERAL
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM AND BOATING SAFETY PROGRAM
APPROVAL  

WHEREAS, the Benton  County Sheriff’s Office  received n otification from the Wa shington State 
Parks and Recreation Commission that fundin g was available throug h the 2017  Marine Patrol  
Federal Financial Assistance Grant Program for the Recreational Boating Safety Program; and  

WHEREAS, it is the int ent of the le gislature to increase boat registration fees in  order to provide 
additional funding to local government for boating safety enforcement and education programs; and 

WHEREAS, the grant funds are to be used for enforcement, education, training, and equipment for 
recreational boating safety; and 

WHEREAS, the grant amount allotted for Benton County is $15,414.19, with a 50% mat ch 
requirement of the 2016 allocated Benton County Vessel Registration Fees, which the State  has 
collected during the State FY 2015 (July 2014 - July 2015); and  

WHEREAS, the projected expenditures for two (2) 2017  Benton County Marine Coordinator 
Positions is $94,041, which exceeds the 50% match requirement; and    

WHEREAS, the Benton County Sh eriff recommends applying for said grant funding to help o ffset 
the expenditures for the Boat Safety Program; NOW, THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Co mmissioners, Benton County, Washington,  
hereby approves the ap plications and authorizes the Benton County Sheriff to sign the atta ched 
Request for Federal Financial Assistance Grant and Boating Safety Program Ap proval and the  
Washington State Parks & Recreation Commission 2017 Marine Patrol Federal Financial Assistance 
Grant Program to be su bmitted for consideration for grant funding in the amount of $15,414.19 for 
the Recreational Boating Safety Program.  

Dated this __________________ day of ___________________, 2017 

 ______ ___        
Chairman of the Board 

 ______ ___        
Member 

 ______ ___        
Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington. 

Attest....................................................... 
  Clerk of the Board 








	CA - Facilities e.pdf
	Resolution
	Form




